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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Good morning. I

          3  think we made it just before noon. I would like to

          4  thank you, first of all, for your patience. The

          5  Committee on Governmental Operations has commenced.

          6  We had a hearing previously and received a report

          7  from the Gelb Commission in reference to their

          8  recommendations for compensation levels for elected

          9  officials.

         10                 This is the second hearing and at

         11  which time we expect also take action on the

         12  recommendations of the Gelb Commission.

         13                 Our first witness will be Glenn

         14  Pasanen. Would you please approach the bench.

         15                 Previously Citizens Union testified

         16  at a prior hearing, at this time we are going to

         17  hear from Mr. Pasanen and we are going to ask you to

         18  identify yourself by name and title.

         19                 I mentioned Citizen Union, I also

         20  ought to say they testified in support of the

         21  recommendation.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MR. PASANEN: Thank you, Madam Chair.

         24  Good morning.

         25                 I am Glenn Pasanen, Associate
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          2  Director of City Project. City Project in general

          3  favors increased compensation for Council Members

          4  and other City elected officials. In the case of the

          5  Council we recognize from our own long experience

          6  that the vast majority of members are full-time

          7  dedicated officials that should be compensated

          8  fairly for that work.

          9                 What troubles us, however, about

         10  Intro. 579 is its failure to deal with historically

         11  unresolved issues, such as definitions of full-time

         12  work and limits on outside earned income.

         13                 In addition there is the question of

         14  when the new compensation takes effect.

         15                 We are all aware I think of the broad

         16  skepticism, even cynicism, that the public feels

         17  about all levels of government these days. Much of

         18  the cynicism is misplaced. But some is well founded.

         19                 A bill like Intro. 579 is thus an

         20  opportunity to show the public that the government

         21  is or can be open, accessible and accountable. But

         22  frankly, all this bill does is make the case that

         23  the affected elected officials are worth higher

         24  compensation. That we agree with. But the bill does

         25  not acknowledge that without a requirement that the
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          2  Council be a full-time legislature, there are

          3  opportunities for equivalent or higher compensation

          4  from other work at the same time, and therefore the

          5  potential for conflicts of interest.

          6                 The result is that many voters

          7  therefore will continue to see the Council as

          8  part-timers with mixed interest.

          9                 Moreover, it would be much more

         10  appropriate for such a major increase in

         11  compensation, however well deserved, to take effect

         12  after the next election.

         13                 The retroactive nature of the bill

         14  only compounds your problem with public skepticism.

         15  The City voters would, in fact, we suspect support

         16  your bill, if it were amended to meet the concerns

         17  we have outlined.

         18                 Thank you for the chance to testify

         19  today.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you for

         21  your testimony.

         22                 I would like to ask you, though, I

         23  think you are quite correct in terms of your

         24  statement as to the general skepticism of the public

         25  when it comes to public officials. Have you also
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          2  noted the same kind of skepticism exists whenever

          3  anyone asks for an increase, if they are transit

          4  workers, why do they want more money? It comes out

          5  of our pockets.

          6                 If they are hospital workers, why

          7  should we have to pay more? Medicare costs money, I

          8  mean who is going to pay for it? So, what you are

          9  saying is that public officials are subject even

         10  more so to the scrutiny and the complaints and the

         11  hyperbole that everyone is subject to, is that not

         12  correct?

         13                 MR. PASANEN: I think more than the

         14  work force --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I said even more

         16  so.

         17                 MR. PASANEN: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay.

         19                 MR. PASANEN: Then when you suggest

         20  that the raise should only go to the increased

         21  compensation, to new employees, although you

         22  acknowledge the fact that the current Council

         23  members are hard-working, would you give us a watch,

         24  dedication, how would you compensate the people who

         25  go to meetings at night after days of work and
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          2  Committee meetings, or handling constituent

          3  problems, how do you acknowledge their value, their

          4  work?

          5                 MR. PASANEN: Well, I think this

          6  Committee and the Chair inherit this time an ongoing

          7  problem. That is why I talked about the historical

          8  problems. Somebody I hope will bite the bullet here

          9  and change the rules and make the compensation,

         10  which we are in favor of, subject to a vote before

         11  an election. And I am arguing that the public would

         12  accept that, and in fact in accepting it would have

         13  a different perception. We are talking about

         14  perceptions here. A better perception of the

         15  Council.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Well, again, I

         17  would think that with the perception would go a

         18  statement to the effect that this Council, I

         19  believe, works harder than prior Councils that I

         20  know of --

         21                 MR. PASANEN: Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Good. For the

         23  record you have heard that.

         24                 I would think also that one would

         25  have to admit that this Council has in terms of
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          2  legislation put more into the City than it has taken

          3  out, in terms of care for those who are less

          4  fortunate, in terms of programs that provided

          5  services which did not exist before, so that if

          6  there is a misconception of what the Council does,

          7  perhaps the people who are projecting a

          8  misconception of the Council ought to go back and

          9  say, hey, what script am I using? Maybe I ought to

         10  use a more current script when I talk about this

         11  Council; is that possible? I sort of get heated up

         12  when I talk like this.

         13                 MR. PASANEN: I understand. I

         14  understand.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay.

         16                 MR. PASANEN: There is another

         17  activity going on in City government at the moment

         18  that if we were in a perfect world, we are

         19  celebrating a perfect baseball game apparently in

         20  the next room, I am a little bit more interested in

         21  a more perfect government I guess. If the Mayor had

         22  created a different kind of Charter Revision

         23  Commission, then I think we could all give to that

         24  Commission the job of dealing with this issue.

         25                 In no way do I mean to impugn the
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          2  value of the work that you or this Committee or the

          3  Council has done in the recent years, I am with you

          4  on that. I am simply trying to I guess translate

          5  what little we hear in the public voice about the

          6  Council in trying to help you and help this

          7  institution to do a better job.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Well, let me

          9  just say this: First of all, we don't control the

         10  other room. We only control in terms of what we do

         11  in this room. And in the City there is more than one

         12  voice. And we can only articulate here our voice.

         13  And our voice says while we applaud Mr. Cohen for

         14  his perfect game, what we do is when we talk about a

         15  budget we talk about health care, we talk about

         16  respite for seniors, we talk about care for people

         17  who have Alzheimer's, we talk about youth programs,

         18  we talk about things that would not have existed,

         19  parks and better parks, education and improvement in

         20  education that would not have existed without the

         21  efforts and work of this Council.

         22                 The second part of this which I think

         23  has not been considered is, unlike other legislative

         24  bodies, both the Congress and the State Legislature,

         25  we did not sit down and say this is what we want and
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          2  this is what we will get, because if we did the

          3  figures might be totally different, that the Gelb

          4  Commission examines factors and they came up with

          5  what they thought was a reasoned position, and we

          6  might differ totally with their reason, especially

          7  by people who do the work. Because unlike you, I

          8  think that 90,000 is a tremendous increase, but I do

          9  not begrudge the Mayor being paid a better salary,

         10  because he is the Mayor of certainly a large and

         11  important City in this nation, and that should be

         12  recognized.

         13                 I would say that in terms of the

         14  other elected officials, there is no comparison with

         15  New York and that should be recognized in terms of

         16  the parity of salaries.

         17                 MR. PASANEN: I think we agree totally

         18  with you on the level of compensation, it is

         19  appropriate for the Mayor, it is appropriate for the

         20  Council.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: What I think I

         22  differ with you on is the statement as to our being

         23  part of your concern for a newer vision. I think

         24  this Council had set a new vision within this City,

         25  which is, I believe unique in this state and in much
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          2  of the country, which is campaign finance, which is

          3  also indeed the financial disclosure, and some

          4  people would say that we are subject to having a

          5  mental problem because we do these kinds of things.

          6                 If it is your opinion, and many

          7  people will agree with you, that there should be

          8  further disclosure, that there may be further

          9  changes necessary to improve the presence of all the

         10  condition or the consideration of government, I

         11  think that is a valid statement that can be made.

         12                 I don't think, though, the Council's

         13  perception will rest upon the fact that that is what

         14  you want, and I would hope that you could really

         15  consider that portion of your statement.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 Council Member Sabini.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair.

         20                 Good afternoon, Mr. Pasanen. I don't

         21  know if you attended the hearing we had with Mr.

         22  Gelb and the members of the Commission, but I raised

         23  some of the same questions you did at the time and

         24  in fact I voted against the last pay increase both

         25  in Committee and in full Council Chamber. I am
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          2  having, while I agree in principle with your

          3  statement, I am having a look at this thing with

          4  sort of different conditions at this time, and I am

          5  wondering if you would agree with some of the

          6  premises that I am holding.

          7                 I believe City Project, or you as an

          8  individual, for example, supported the phase-in of

          9  term limits, the question that was on the ballot a

         10  couple of years ago that was proposed.

         11                 MR. PASANEN: We did not take a

         12  position on term limits.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I think that

         14  other good government groups did, and one of the

         15  arguments that was made at that time was that you

         16  would get a natural turn-over anyway, and in fact

         17  that has happened since that question was voted

         18  down, and the parallel I believe is that you are

         19  getting a natural turnover in terms of people not

         20  having outside income, and the class which entered

         21  the Council in 1992 which was the largest class in

         22  history I believe was 18 or 19, the number of people

         23  who had no outside income was the majority

         24  anecdotally since then the number of people that I

         25  can name who had no outside income is almost
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          2  unanimous, including people who have come in since

          3  '92 sitting right up on this podium, with the

          4  exception of one who has spiritual duties that he

          5  hasn't given up and where we wouldn't want him to do

          6  that.

          7                 But I think that the people coming

          8  into this body in this decade have been almost

          9  exclusively people with no outside income, and while

         10  that doesn't ban it, and as you say, it gives the

         11  potential for conflict, at the same time I believe

         12  that that has, the conditions have changed. Would

         13  you agree with all of that?

         14                 MR. PASANEN: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: The other

         16  thing that concerns me is that with the advent of

         17  term limits that we want to make sure that if people

         18  are only going to come in here for a six-year period

         19  of time, that we get the kind of quality people that

         20  would, that would want to stay in government, rather

         21  than people with just nothing else to do. And while

         22  if you had nothing else to do, that shouldn't

         23  disqualify you from public service, I don't know if

         24  that is the best kind of person you would want

         25  there.
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          2                 So, changing the effective date of

          3  this would help that matter, but at the same time,

          4  you know, there is a high level of frustration with

          5  the people that are going to have to leave here,

          6  that were going to have to leave here and that

          7  workload is increasing almost exponentially.

          8                 For example, this June we passed the

          9  budget relatively early, but if you were on my

         10  Subcommittee, for example, you had a pretty rough

         11  June, as Councilman Carrion will attest, since we

         12  had another 11 hours of hearings on one project that

         13  followed up with 13 hours of hearings on a prior

         14  project less than 30 days before.

         15                 So, I think that while I would agree

         16  with both of your premises, I think conditions have

         17  changed, and you seem to agree that conditions have

         18  changed, the question is whether or not the changing

         19  of those conditions is good enough to make this

         20  increase a justifiable one. But I am glad that we at

         21  least have common ground on that.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Council Member

         24  Carrion.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,
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          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 Mr. Pasanen, I just wanted to go to

          4  this conflict of interest conclusion that you reach,

          5  and in the fourth paragraph of your testimony, I

          6  just want to understand your logic. Where you

          7  suggest that if there is, without the requirement

          8  that it be a full-time legislature, there are

          9  opportunities for equivalent or higher compensation,

         10  and your logic seems to suggest that because there

         11  might be equivalent or higher compensation, that in

         12  and of itself creates a situation where there could

         13  be a conflict of interest. I don't fully comprehend

         14  how that adds up.

         15                 Let alone the fact that as Council

         16  Member Sabini suggested, that there are so few of us

         17  that would be in that situation anyway.

         18                 MR. PASANEN: Right, I agree with the

         19  premise that there is no, as far as I know,

         20  obviously at the moment -- I am really talking I

         21  guess about principle and about perceptions, and it

         22  does seem to me that, not to pick on the legal

         23  profession, but it does seem to me that --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Go ahead,

         25  everybody else does.
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          2                 MR. PASANEN: Fair enough.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And I am

          4  married to a lawyer.

          5                 MR. PASANEN: Fair enough. Then you

          6  understand.

          7                 But I think, frankly, from our point

          8  of view it is a matter of perception, but if it is

          9  possible for a Council member to be associated with

         10  a law practice, and if that is a law practice that

         11  is lucrative enough so that the income levels

         12  approach the kind that I am suggesting, then that

         13  only compounds the potential problem. Again, I don't

         14  mean to impugn anyone on this Committee or in the

         15  Council. I just think it is one of those

         16  constitutional perhaps issues that ought to be

         17  settled aside from the individuals who are affected

         18  by it.

         19                 The Chair raises a good point, in the

         20  two and a half years that this Council, the

         21  term-limited members have to face, it is -- if this

         22  bill is worth supporting, then of course it ought to

         23  compensate the term-limited members, as well as

         24  those who are not term-limited.

         25                 I don't know how we get around this.
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          2  The current process, and that is why I raise the

          3  Charter Revision, the current process is geared to

          4  create this problem, and I simply wanted to

          5  illustrate the problem for you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Just to be

          7  clear for the record, so the suggestion is not that

          8  it creates a conflict of interest where this person,

          9  because of their private employment, would benefit

         10  from their office. You are really talking about a

         11  conflict of attention and time dedicated to the job?

         12                 MR. PASANEN: No, I am raising both

         13  questions.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Both issues.

         15                 MR. PASANEN: Both issues, absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Is there a

         18  conflict of interest that you can point out to us?

         19  Is there a conflict of interest?

         20                 MR. PASANEN: No, I want to be

         21  perfectly clear. That is why I said I am suggesting

         22  no impugning of Committee members or Council

         23  Members.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Are there ethics

         25  rules that would take care of the situations that
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          2  exist already that you have mentioned?

          3                 MR. PASANEN: Well, there are ethics

          4  procedures in the City that deal with certain of

          5  these issues, whether they resolve --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Are there rules

          7  as well that exist?

          8                 MR. PASANEN: If you are suggesting

          9  that there may be rules that would satisfy my

         10  concerns, I am not clear.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: No, I was not

         12  suggesting that.

         13                 Obviously by your testimony you are

         14  indicating that you are not satisfied with what

         15  exists. I would not suggest that what you had said

         16  is irrelevant.

         17                 What I am asking is are there

         18  currently rules, ethic rules, conference rules,

         19  statutes, ethics rules, that would take care of this

         20  situation that you mention? And are there

         21  constitutional violations that you are aware of that

         22  this law would be in conflict with?

         23                 MR. PASANEN: Well, I am not a lawyer

         24  and I guess I would have to defer on that to further

         25  study it. I don't know.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay, fine.

          3  Because then what I have suggested is that what you

          4  are saying is, in your opinion, to create the kind

          5  of world that you would like to see, which is one

          6  that would be more free of corruption or

          7  possibilities of corruption, you would like to see

          8  this world that would say that you could not have

          9  people who work for a living, aside from a Council

         10  position, and that a full-time job would be clearly

         11  delineated for you, and that in addition to that you

         12  feel that it would be imperative that this salary

         13  increase would only go to those people who are

         14  coming in as opposed to those currently in office,

         15  because of the size of the increase you think that

         16  all of these positions ought to be the prevailing

         17  factors?

         18                 MR. PASANEN: In the more perfect

         19  world that I think you are suggesting --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: The world is not

         21  perfect. So in this messy world in which we live --

         22                 MR. PASANEN: Absolutely, more

         23  perfect, yes. I think that is a fair reading of our

         24  statement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay, thank you.
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          2                 Thank you for your testimony.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Madam Chair,

          4  may I just ask one question?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Excuse me.

          6  Council Member Henry.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Yes, I would

          8  just like to ask, in light of your testimony ideally

          9  how do you see the Council, futeristic Council,

         10  operating full-time and at what level?

         11                 MR. PASANEN: I think it resolves the

         12  compensation question for the near term. The

         13  question of when such a raise should take effect is

         14  the tough one.

         15                 As I said, someone has got to bite

         16  the bullet, if what I am suggesting is the problem

         17  is a problem. And one way out would be to put this

         18  on the Charter Revision agenda, should it in fact,

         19  as is said, a commission that is looking at all

         20  aspects of government.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: It would seem

         22  to me that your only reservation has to do with the

         23  Council and how it is not only constituted, but also

         24  the level of increase that is pending.

         25                 MR. PASANEN: Again, it is not the
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          2  level of the increase. I think I could probably make

          3  an argument that this compensation is not

          4  sufficient.

          5                 I think in practice there have been

          6  certain compromises made along the way to keep the

          7  compensation perhaps lower than it otherwise would

          8  be so that this ambiguity between full-time and not

          9  so full-time didn't get really addressed. That is

         10  speculation on my part and historical revisionism,

         11  but I have been in many, many Council hearings over

         12  the last many years where these issues have come up,

         13  and I think it is unfortunate that there is any

         14  suggestion that the members at any one time

         15  particularly at this time are undeserving of

         16  support, that is why I am, as you can tell, somewhat

         17  uncomfortable making these points. But the problem

         18  will remain and if this still is passed it will be a

         19  concern for those members who return in the next

         20  round.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: My final

         22  question has to do with your last paragraph, where

         23  you made a statement to the effect that if it does

         24  take effect, that it does so after the next

         25  election, what is your rationale for saying that?
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          2  Because in effect, the way I see it, you have been

          3  making an argument for those who have been in office

          4  for X number of years, not so much for the in-coming

          5  members.

          6                 MR. PASANEN: I am taking the

          7  difficult --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PASANEN: We are the

          9  ones who have really been setting the pace, who have

         10  borne the load, during the heat of the day as it

         11  were, so aren't we more deserving of an increase

         12  while in office than those who potentially will be

         13  coming into office?

         14                 MR. PASANEN: I have to go back to my

         15  original statement. The problem, as we see it, is

         16  that out there, not represented in this room

         17  apparently at the moment, but there is a skepticism,

         18  a cynicism about legislatures, not this one,

         19  legislatures in general, that are self-serving, and

         20  it doesn't --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: The way I see

         22  it, my take is that whatever we do will not change

         23  that skepticism or that perception out there. People

         24  will always be skeptical of elected officials,

         25  whatever you do.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 MR. PASANEN: I hope that is not true.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Of course it

          4  is.

          5                 MR. PASNANEN: What I was trying to

          6  say in that last paragraph is that I think the

          7  public would rise to the occasion, would change the

          8  perception somewhat of a Council that had the --

          9  made the decision, let me put it that way, to ask

         10  for a raise, and have that raise take effect after

         11  the next selection, because it permits the public to

         12  support you all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you.

         14                 MR. PASANEN: This way it looks as if

         15  it is better to do it, let's say another way.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Well, thank you

         17  very much for your testimony. Let me just say this:

         18  One of the things this Committee will not do is

         19  divide itself along lines as to when you came on

         20  board or did not come on board. That is a very

         21  divisive thing and that is what people would like us

         22  to do.

         23                 I would say that this Council, and

         24  when I say that this Council has done more work, I

         25  don't mean in two and a half years. I came in this
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          2  Council when they did not do very much and the

          3  Council had to force the door open. I think possibly

          4  one of the reasons the Council has this reputation

          5  is because they are consistently trying to please

          6  people who cannot see because they do not want to

          7  see. And that is a problem that we have, but we

          8  cannot walk lock-step with people who will not come

          9  into the light.

         10                 We cannot also unilaterally change

         11  anyone's position. The only thing I will say to you

         12  is that those people who want to see will see. Those

         13  people who come into the programs that you offer

         14  will know that those programs did not exist before

         15  this Council became an active Council. Those people

         16  who have the benefit of services will remember when

         17  those services did not exist, and they must know

         18  where they got them from.

         19                 Now, if we are perceived by the

         20  public as being dishonest, it is because of the fact

         21  that you and others have not said this Council is

         22  working, this Council has done this for us and they

         23  have helped us to deliver to you services and we

         24  serve as your advocates, but the Council also are

         25  our advocates. And so a part of the perception is
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          2  that there is a partnership and that other partner

          3  must also go out and advocate that this Council has

          4  done its job and done it very, very well.

          5                 And there isn't a park in the City,

          6  we don't all have special parks that we can tear up,

          7  pull out and put millions of dollars in. I don't

          8  know of any park in the community that would exist,

          9  except for the support and efforts of this Council.

         10  And if you find one, call me up and tell me about

         11  them. I don't think you will.

         12                 At this time Council Member Rivera

         13  has indicated he wanted to ask a question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Just very

         15  quickly. Very quickly, Madam Chair.

         16                 I believe, by listening to the

         17  statement of Mr. Pasanen and looking through some of

         18  them, that his role in my view here today is

         19  continuing to attempt to, as was done in the past,

         20  prior to leading to 1989, and the changes that came

         21  about as a result of the City Charter, changes which

         22  yet gave the City Council more power, more

         23  responsibility, I believe that he is here today

         24  sharing with us a concern which I understand. I also

         25  thank him for recognizing that in my view, if I look
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          2  around this Committee, we are all full time members

          3  of this body, I hate to come close to ask him what

          4  could be interpreted as an unfair question, but I

          5  need to ask this type of question. In his view, what

          6  does he consider a full-time member of the City

          7  Council to be?

          8                 I understand the concern, but I am

          9  under the impression that some of the concerns that

         10  are highlighted here in his statement today are

         11  something that is being dealt on a daily basis by

         12  the Conflict of Interest Board and that could be in

         13  the area of those members who do have an outside

         14  income, and I think that that has been handled very

         15  well because I don't know of any member in this body

         16  that has been found of doing anything wrong as he or

         17  she fulfills their mission as an elected official,

         18  in this case a member of the City Council.

         19                 But I would like to ask, because when

         20  you talk about a full-time member of this

         21  legislature, do you take into account that last

         22  night I want to a meeting and by the time I got home

         23  it was about 12:30 at night? I do not know, in all

         24  fairness, any of these other members who does have

         25  an outside income who practiced law, I don't know
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          2  what their schedule is like, in all fairness.

          3                 So, I would like to know, here is

          4  where even I feel a little uncomfortable asking this

          5  question. If you had the power to write down what a

          6  full-time, is it a nine to five type of a job you

          7  are talking about? Because I don't think that is

          8  happening anywhere in this City, from the president

          9  on down, in any legislature in this City.

         10                 I think especially as a result of the

         11  cutbacks of the seventies, 1977, '78, to be exact, I

         12  can tell you that African-American and Latino

         13  legislators in this City have had to fill in the

         14  vacuum that was created because of those cutbacks.

         15  We have in effect become social services agencies,

         16  dealing with so many needs in our community that are

         17  no longer being provided by this great City of ours,

         18  and I personally -- I will take this into another

         19  area. I would like for us to roll back everybody's

         20  salary and all the prices in this City. I would like

         21  to go back to when the subway was five cents and 25

         22  cents and it might have been cleaner and safer than

         23  today, but that is not to be the case.

         24                 I just wanted to share some of my

         25  thoughts with you. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. PASANEN: Well, I think it is a

          3  fair question. And, again, I think we have the

          4  experience to understand just how far Council

          5  Members work, so I appreciate the comment.

          6                 I don't think if you ask a lot of

          7  people outside City Hall whether in fact the Council

          8  is full-time, that they would agree with you and me.

          9  So again, I am trying to help and deal with this

         10  public perception.

         11                 The answer to how to define full-time

         12  has to be answered in terms of outside earned

         13  income, and there are clearly, I don't want to go

         14  into it today, but there are instances that it is

         15  known through the good disclosure rules that were

         16  alluded to earlier, we know that there is outside

         17  earned income, earned by certain Council members,

         18  which support the public perception. I think it is a

         19  huge problem in terms of the day-to-day work and

         20  effectiveness of the Council and I would agree with

         21  the chair on the good work that it has performed in

         22  recent years.

         23                 But until you resolve, as the

         24  Congress of the United States did some years ago,

         25  and put some limits on outside earned income, these
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          2  public perceptions will continue.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Madam Chair, if

          4  given the -- let's use your argument that you have

          5  presented in this paper. Suppose I come from a

          6  wealthy family, I am an aire to an inheritance, and

          7  I have all of that behind me, would that be taken

          8  into consideration for compensation for a Council

          9  Member? Raising that category?

         10                 MR. PASANEN: You are raising an issue

         11  which I didn't get into, that is why I speak of

         12  earned outside income.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Well, I could

         14  be earning interest on something, you know.

         15                 MR. PASANEN: That is a tougher one,

         16  and one I don't think the US Congress has dealt with

         17  very well either.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I don't think we

         19  are going to solve the economic problems today.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: A fair day's

         21  work deserves a fair day's pay.

         22                 MR. PASANEN: Absolutely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I would like to

         24  thank you for your testimony and for your

         25  thoughtfulness. Please know that we appreciate the
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          2  work that you do for all of the constituent groups

          3  that you work with and we appreciate that.

          4                 Please understand that when you come

          5  in you are subject to the same scrutiny that we are

          6  when we come before you and the same kind of attacks

          7  that we receive.

          8                 MR. PASANEN: I appreciate that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: But it is not

         10  done with malice and venom, but because of the fact

         11  that we have a sincere difference of opinion.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 Are there any other witnesses who

         14  wish to offer testimony at this time?

         15                 Are there any other witnesses?

         16                 MS. GLISKY: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: All right, would

         18  you please come forward.

         19                 Have you signed an appearance ticket?

         20                 MS. GLISKY: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Would you kindly

         22  see the Sergeant-At-Arms and sign one?

         23                 MS. GLISKY: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Would you please

         25  have a seat.
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          2                 All right, Sarah Glisky, and you are

          3  speaking for yourself?

          4                 MS. GLISKY: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: All right,

          6  please speak up for yourself at this time. And would

          7  you identify yourself and your interest, if any.

          8                 MS. GLISKY: Okay. Is this on? Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Speak into the

         10  mic.

         11                 MS. GLISKY: My name is Sarah Glisky.

         12  I am a current social work student at the University

         13  of Columbia.

         14                 I go to school part-time and I work

         15  full-time as an ICM worker, which is Intensive Care

         16  Management. I work with the mentally ill, as well as

         17  I work with children. I am currently working at the

         18  City Council Summer Camp that works with children

         19  from the ages of five to 13 years old during the

         20  summer.

         21                 I agree, in hearing this discussion I

         22  agree that people work hard, especially people who

         23  are working for disadvantaged people in New York

         24  City deserve to be compensated for doing such hard

         25  work.
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          2                 I currently work two jobs and I go to

          3  school in order to continue with my career, helping

          4  people who are disadvantaged in the City. My

          5  question to you is that, as you are aware, as people

          6  who work with children, people who are working with

          7  the mentally ill are doing a great service to this

          8  city, keeping children and adults out of the

          9  hospital, and keeping children off the streets,

         10  educating our children, advocating for people who

         11  are disadvantaged in the City, which there are many.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: How does that

         13  relate --

         14                 MS. GLISKY: I am curious why there is

         15  such a discrepancy in the salary? I make under

         16  $30,000 a year, which as you know in the City is not

         17  much to live by and I am wondering why there is such

         18  a discrepancy in the salary?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Excuse me. Let

         20  me answer you by just saying this. Your question has

         21  to do with your salary.

         22                 MS. GLISKY: Correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: And why you are

         24  paid at the level of compensation that you are paid.

         25                 MS. GLISKY: At such a low level.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT:  And that has

          3  nothing to do with this because this deals with the

          4  compensation of the elected officials.

          5                 MS. GLISKY: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: What Council

          7  Member Henry stated, and which I believe most of us

          8  agree with, is that, one, you should be paid a fair

          9  wage, living wage.

         10                 MS. GLISKY: Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: We do not set

         12  the salary levels.

         13                 MS. GLISKY: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: The salary

         15  levels are set by whomever bargains for you, set

         16  with personnel and with whatever agency compensation

         17  is agreed to in terms of your particular title.

         18                 If you worked in mental health, there

         19  are people who work with you who make, or who earn

         20  more than you do.

         21                 MS. GLISKY: Correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: You don't go to

         23  lunch and say well why do you earn more than I do.

         24  You know that if you want to earn what they earn,

         25  then you must bring yourself up to the level that
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          2  they are in, in order to earn their salaries. So,

          3  you cannot possibly come to us and say why am I

          4  earning $30,000 and you are considering increasing

          5  your salary to $90,000.

          6                 The requirements are different, the

          7  responsibilities are different. We agree with you,

          8  though, that the work you do in working with

          9  children and people who are mentally disabled is

         10  work that is needed, that perhaps is

         11  undercompensated for, and in many instances the

         12  state has a responsibility in terms of helping to

         13  set that level of reimbursement, that is why this

         14  budget that is going on in Albany is very, very

         15  important.

         16                 The City of New York in order to know

         17  what it is going to be has to receive a certain

         18  number of dollars from the state so that the City

         19  can pay the salaries and do what is correct in order

         20  to pay you and others the dollars that you deserve,

         21  okay?

         22                 Now, let me just say to you, we thank

         23  you for your question. I hope you understood our

         24  answer. And we are not giving you short shrift.

         25                 Do you belong to a union?
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          2                 MS. GLISKY: No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay. What you

          4  should do, though, is talk to your agency, find out

          5  since you are going to school, how you can put

          6  yourself in the tract that will move you up to earn

          7  more money.

          8                 MS. GLISKY: And is the City Council

          9  willing to advocate for the social --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I can't hear the

         11  question.

         12                 MS. GLISKY: The City Council willing

         13  to advocate for workers, as myself, who we receive

         14  money from the City and whatnot for --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: It doesn't make

         16  any difference if you receive it from the City, it

         17  is whoever it is that applies those dollars.

         18                 But you talk to your agency and then

         19  find out what you must do.

         20                 MS. GLISKY: I was told I need to

         21  address this issue with the City Council.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: In order to

         23  improve your --

         24                 MS. GLISKY: To advocate for us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Okay.
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          2                 MS. GLISKY: I do want to make one

          3  more note.

          4                 You were saying earlier that you are

          5  working hard on the problems in the City, getting

          6  them started, helping them to exist, and if it

          7  wasn't for the front line workers, these programs

          8  wouldn't exist at all.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: We recognize

         10  that. That is one reason we supported living wage

         11  for people who work, that is one reason we support

         12  improved health care, that is one reason we believe

         13  that you don't privatize many jobs because people

         14  who privatize generally end up without all of those

         15  benefits. So, we recognize all of the things you are

         16  saying, and our concerns cause us to take certain

         17  positions.

         18                 MS. GLISKY: Okay, I appreciate that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: All right?

         20                 MS. GLISKY: Thank you for your time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Thank you so

         22  much.

         23                 Hearing no one else, who wished to

         24  testify, the hearing portion of our meeting is

         25  closed, we are now going to move to a vote. We are
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          2  going to ask the Sergeant-At-Arms to call our

          3  members.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Pinkett.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Harrison.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rivera.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Yes. And I

         10  want to continue the young lady who just came before

         11  us, to continue to getting involved, because at

         12  times in the past we have looked into such issues

         13  that she has described to us. But I just wanted to

         14  simply say continue to get involved in this process

         15  and participate in these public hearings.

         16                 I vote yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Sabini.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I am going to

         19  vote aye, Madam Chair, if I could ask permission to

         20  explain my vote.

         21                 I am voting aye with the reservation

         22  that Mr. Pasanen raised and also with concerns that

         23  some amendments may be offered on the floor that may

         24  or may not change my vote but in the current form I

         25  will support the bill in the Committee.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Henry.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER HENRY: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Carrion.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Reed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

          9  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative with

         10  no abstentions, the item is adopted, please sign the

         11  report.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: I am going to

         13  ask that the vote be held open for Council Member

         14  Watkins who is on her way and indicated that she was

         15  en route.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

         17  at seven in the affirmative and is still open.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PINKETT: The District

         19  Attorneys of all five boroughs have asked that their

         20  testimony be included in the record, and so we are

         21  going to ask that the testimony of the District

         22  Attorneys of Manhattan, Brooklyn, Queens and Staten

         23  Island, as well as the Bronx, be included in today's

         24  hearing.

         25                 (The following testimony was read
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          2  into the record.)

          3

          4  Testimony of:

          5  District Attorneys of the City of New York

          6

          7                 Thank you for requesting our views

          8  regarding the compensation level of District

          9  Attorneys in New York City.

         10                 As you know, Local Law 77 mandates

         11  review of District Attorneys' salaries eery four

         12  years by an independent and non-political advisory

         13  commission ("The Commission"). The purpose of this

         14  review is to keep salaries at a level sufficient to

         15  maintain a standard of living reasonably consistent

         16  with the status of the office and to avoid salary

         17  limitations on subordinates that would prevent the

         18  city from attracting and retaining competent

         19  dedicated personnel. In view of these objectives, we

         20  believe the annual salaries of the city's five

         21  District Attorneys should be raised to $150,000.

         22                 In 1995, the District Attorneys were

         23  paid $115,000 a year about $2,000 a year more than

         24  Justices of the State Supreme Court. On the

         25  recommendation of the Commission, the District
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          2  Attorneys' salaries were increased to $1`25,000.

          3  Effective January 1, 1999, the salaries of the

          4  Supreme Court Justices were raised from $113,000 to

          5  $136,000; by operation of law, County Law, Sec. 928,

          6  the salaries of the city's District Attorneys were

          7  raised to the same amount. If the salaries of the

          8  District Attorneys were to be set at $150,000, as

          9  the Gelb Commission recommends, they would again

         10  bear the same relation to the salary of Supreme

         11  Court Justices, about ten percent higher, as they

         12  did after the 1995 increase.

         13                 An increase to $150,000 would also

         14  make the District Attorneys' salaries more nearly

         15  commensurate with their official responsibilities.

         16                 The District Attorneys, of course,

         17  bear the primary responsibility in this sate for

         18  prosecuting crimes, including the most serious

         19  murders and other violent felonies and the most

         20  sophisticated white-collar crimes.

         21                 In addition, it is the District

         22  Attorneys on who the public relies to see that

         23  even-handed justice is done in cases of actual or

         24  suspected official misconduct and corruption.

         25                 Moreover, though crime has decreased
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          2  markedly over the past four years, due in no small

          3  measure to the efforts of the City's prosecutors -

          4  the work of the District Attorneys' office has

          5  actually increased. Arrests in New York City over

          6  this period have risen by 14 percent, resulting in

          7  increased caseloads. While some attorneys in

          8  official positions in this state are paid more than

          9  the New York City's District Attorneys, none has a

         10  greater impact on the security and sense of

         11  well-being of the citizenry.

         12                 The District Attorneys' salaries act

         13  as a cap on the salaries of their top managerial and

         14  supervisory assistants and, ultimately, determine

         15  the salaries at all levels of their offices.

         16                 Accordingly, the requested increase

         17  to $150,000 for the District Attorneys would provide

         18  much needed salary relief to deserving subordinates.

         19  Although there is stiff competition for entry level

         20  positions, as assistant district attorneys are

         21  trained and again experience many leave the public

         22  sector for more lucrative jobs. This results in a

         23  loss not only of competent senior staff but also of

         24  promising junior attorneys, many of whom are

         25  carrying huge amounts of student loan debt in
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          2  addition to their other financial obligations.

          3                 5he continual loss of qualified

          4  personnel, due in large part to inadequate salaries,

          5  reduces the efficiency of our staffs and hinders our

          6  ability to provide the level of excellence and

          7  professionalism that the people of this City

          8  deserve.

          9                 The requested salary of $150,000 for

         10  District Attorneys, while small in comparison to

         11  salaries for attorneys in the private sector, where

         12  some sixth-year associates earn $190,000, would be

         13  comparable to the salaries of other attorneys in

         14  responsible public or quasi-public positions in this

         15  state.

         16                 For example, the Attorney General

         17  earns $151,500 and the Counsel to the Governor earns

         18  $147,000. Associate judges of the New York State

         19  Court of Appeals earn $151,200 and the Executive

         20  Director of the Legal Aid Society earns $148,000.

         21  Notably, District Attorneys in other jurisdictions,

         22  where the cost of living is lower than in New York

         23  City, earn higher salaries than their New York City

         24  counterparts; for example, the District Attorney in

         25  Alameda County, California, earns $162,240 and the
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          2  District Attorney in San Diego earns $149,739.

          3                 We are mindful of the City's fiscal

          4  position and the symbolic impact of any raise.

          5  However, if salaries are not adjusted now, District

          6  Attorneys will, in all likelihood, not receive an

          7  increase for at least another four years. We believe

          8  that now is the time for compensation levels to be

          9  set at an appropriate level. Thank you for the

         10  opportunity to present our views.

         11                 (Signed by Robert T. Johnson,

         12  District Attorney Bronx County, Charles J. Hynes,

         13  District Attorney Kings County, Robert M.

         14  Morgenthau, District Attorney New York County,

         15  William L. Murphy, District Attorney Richmond

         16  County, Richard A. Brown, District Attorney Queens

         17  County.

         18                 (End of written testimony.)

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 12:46 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 20th day of July 1999.
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